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AGENDA DATE:	December 8, 2015

TO:	Mayor and Councilmembers

FROM:	Planning Division, Community Development Department 

SUBJECT:	Possible Short-Term Home Sharing Rental Ordinance

RECOMMENDATION:  That Council:

A. Receive an update on the proposal to define, permit, regulate and tax short-term home sharing rentals in the City; and 
B. Provide direction to staff regarding the development of a short-term home sharing rental ordinance. 

BACKGROUND:

Since March 2015, the City Council has been actively involved in addressing the proliferation of short-term rentals in the City. The Zoning Ordinance defines a short-term rental (“Hotel”) as the renting of a building, or portion of a building that is designed for or occupied as the temporary abiding place of individuals for less than 30 consecutive days.  This type of rental is considered a transient, commercial use similar to hotels, motels or bed and breakfast operations, and is prohibited in most residential zones of the City.  

On June 23, 2015, the City Council directed staff to enforce the City’s existing Zoning Ordinance regulations regarding vacation rentals and to develop an enhanced enforcement plan. On August 11, 2015, Council allocated funding for staff to conduct proactive enforcement of unlawful short-term vacation rentals. The effort is expected to take two to three years to complete the initial work, with ongoing enforcement efforts continuing into the future. Given the relatively long timeframe, City Council directed staff to return with an enforcement status report in six months, which will occur in early 2016.

At the August 11 meeting, in response to public input, the City Council also initiated a Zoning Ordinance Amendment to consider allowing short-term home sharing rentals. Due to the complexity of issues involved with short-term home sharing rentals, Council directed staff to first meet with the Planning Commission to refine the definition and general regulations for short-term home sharing, and then return to Council for further direction.




DISCUSSION:

Planning Commission Discussion 
On October 15, 2015, the Planning Commission held a public hearing and discussed the opportunities and challenges of regulating short-term home sharing rentals (Attachment 1 – Planning Commission Staff Report). It is important to note that staff posed three specific questions to the Commission in order to focus comments on the concept of allowing and regulating short-term home sharing rentals, and deterred the Commission from getting into details of a potential ordinance. If an ordinance is further pursued by Council, staff expects to have several public meetings with the Planning Commission about those details. The Commission was not asked to consider their recommendations in light of staff workload or budget implications, as those issues are generally under the purview of the City Council.  

The Planning Commission generally supported the concept of allowing short-term home sharing rentals in the City, but was cautious about the enforcement challenges, costs and staffing resources required to successfully implement such an ordinance (Attachment 2 – Planning Commission Minutes). Similarly, while the majority of the Planning Commission believed that short-term home sharing rentals should be “hosted,” with the homeowner or primary resident present during the guest’s stay, they recognized the significant challenge in enforcing such a requirement. 

The Commission generally supported regulating short-term home sharing rentals by a land use permit and performance measures rather than an annually renewable license, similar to a business license. Commissioners acknowledged that the land use standards would need to be clearly defined and measurable and that additional staff may be required to proactively monitor and enforce the regulations. 

Enforcement Challenges
The primary challenge with developing and enforcing an ordinance allowing short-term home sharing rentals is attempting to regulate activities within private residences that are not easily observed. In most cases, a physical inspection of the property will not inform staff about a potential violation. In addition, without the cooperation of management companies and hosting platforms, it is very difficult to track the number of total or consecutive rental days and to prove that a financial transaction has taken place. Accordingly, enforcement efforts must then focus on neighbors and/or staff monitoring and documenting activities, such as guests coming and going, potentially over very long periods, in order to confirm an alleged violation.  

Another issue is that the City’s current administrative citation of $100 per first offense is negligible in relation to the potential revenue generated by operating a short-term home sharing rental. Increasing the citation amount and/or requiring the owner to sign a settlement agreement could incentivize compliance and provide a proper deterrent to unlawful short-term rentals; however, those methods are only useful once staff has confirmed that a violation has occurred.  

If legalization and regulation of short-term home sharing is pursued by the Council, staff recommends that rentals be authorized via an annually renewable license, as opposed to a land use permit. Land use permits are typically issued after an applicant has demonstrated compliance with the applicable regulations and the permit approval runs with the land, and is not subject to a relatively easy revocation process. Regardless of the method used to permit short-term home sharing rentals, proving a violation would be challenging, as discussed above. However, if a license is revoked or not renewed for noncompliance, it is far easier to demonstrate a violation of the Municipal Code for operating a short-term home sharing rental without a license than it is to build up a case each time that the operator is alleged to be in violation of certain performance standards.

General Plan and Zoning Ordinance Considerations
When considering policy changes, an important analysis is determining consistency with the City’s General Plan and Zoning Ordinance. The 2011 General Plan reaffirms the City’s commitment to “living within our resources,” which requires managing future growth. Changing existing zoning regulations to allow short-term overnight accommodations in residential zones could possibly alter the balance of land uses that is key to the character of the City. Furthermore, strict measures are currently in place to limit the amount of new commercial growth in the City, including overnight accommodations in hotels, motels and bed and breakfast establishments. Allowing homeowners to rent their homes out for short-term stays without similar growth control measures would be contrary to the City’s General Plan goals and provide an economic advantage to home sharing rentals over hotels and motels.  

The City’s Zoning Ordinance is clear in that the regulations for the One-Family, Two-Family, and the Limited Multiple-Family Residence Zones are “designed and intended to establish, maintain and protect the essential characteristics of the districts, to develop and sustain a suitable environment for domestic life including the raising of children, and to prohibit all activities which would tend to be inharmonious with or injurious to the preservation of a residential environment.” There is concern that short-term rentals of any type may negatively impact the character and dynamics of a residential neighborhood, and may contribute to other nuisances, such as noise, litter and on-street parking impacts.  

Conclusion
Since June 2015, staff and the Council have been open to developing regulations that would allow short-term home sharing rentals to be permitted and regulated differently than vacation rentals. However, after thoughtful consideration, staff does not recommend further pursuit of a home sharing ordinance at this time.


Since June, it has become clearer to staff that it is very difficult to distinguish between vacation rentals and home sharing rentals. They both involve the renting of individual bedrooms or entire homes for less than 30 consecutive days, and both are incredibly difficult to monitor and enforce. 

There is a growing concern with vacation rentals and home sharing in the City, the region, and throughout the world. Many cities are attempting to address the issues and balance opportunities and impacts. None are finding it easy, and there are no simple solutions. Until all hosting platforms cooperate with each other and local jurisdictions to regularly report bookings or provide other methods to confirm compliance with local regulations, pursuing short-term home sharing rental regulations at this time is not an efficient use of staff resources, and it would likely place a tremendous burden on individuals and neighborhoods.

If Council agrees, staff will continue to enforce the current zoning regulations and use the additional staff dedicated to vacation rental enforcement to proactively enforce short-term home sharing rentals, with a priority on those for which complaints have been filed.

BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION:

Since June 2015, the City has stopped accepting new business license applications for any type of short-term rental operation. The City continues to collect Transient Occupancy Taxes (TOT) from any existing vacation rentals and short-term home sharing rentals that have not ceased operation due to enforcement action. In Fiscal Year 2015, the City’s General Fund received approximately $1.19 million in TOT revenues from the 349 registered short-term vacation and home sharing rentals. With the staff recommendation to continue enforcement of existing zoning regulations, this General Fund revenue stream will diminish over time with increased enforcement.


ATTACHMENT(S):	1. Planning Commission Staff Report (October 15, 2015)
2. Planning Commission Minutes (October 15, 2015) 

PREPARED BY:	Elizabeth Limón, Project Planner

SUBMITTED BY:	George Buell, Community Development Director

APPROVED BY:		City Administrator's Office
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